W00A

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

STATE FARM FIRE AND CASUALTY COMPANY,

Petitioner,

v.

EXECUTIVE HEALTH SERVICES, INC.,
and WAYNE O. MONTGOMERY, M.D.

CASE NO.: 69,897

Respondents.

FILED

NOV 10 1987

RECEIVED
CLERK OF THE SUPREME COURT
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

On Notice To Invoke Discretionary
Jurisdiction To Review A Decision Of The
Second District Court Of Appeal

PETITIONER'S INITIAL BRIEF ON THE MERITS

TERRENCE E. KEHOE
HAAS, BOEHM, BROWN, RIGDON,
SEACREST & FISCHER, P.A.
Post Office Box 2593
Orlando, Florida 32802-2593
(305) 898-5920

Attorneys for Petitioner

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

In this brief, the Petitioner, STATE FARM FIRE AND CASUALTY COMPANY, will be referred to as "State Farm". The Respondents, EXECUTIVE HEALTH SERVICES, INC., and WAYNE O. MONTGOMERY, M.D., will be referred to as "respondents" or by their respective names. The Appendix attached to this brief will be referred to as "App.", followed by the appropriate page number. The record on appeal will be referred to as "R", followed by the appropriate page number.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND OF THE FACTS

This case arises from a declaratory judgment action on an insurance coverage issue.

On January 25, 1982, Robert Ray went to Executive Health Services, Inc., a facility in the business of rendering medical services, for a medical examination (R 135). He had received a splinter in his thigh from an accident at work (R 83). Mr. Ray was seated in an examining room on a table used solely for medical examinations (R 94). Dr. Montgomery entered the examining room, asked Mr. Ray what his problem was, and reviewed the information available to him from the nurse's chart. After Mr. Ray had explained to Dr. Montgomery what had happened, the doctor instructed Mr. Ray to lie down on the table so he could get a better look at the injury. In the process of complying with the doctor's instructions, Mr. Ray fell back heavily on the examining table, the table up-ended and Mr. Ray fell on his right shoulder (R

82-84). Mr. Ray subsequently sued Executive Health Services, Inc., and Dr. Montgomery for damages arising out of their alleged negligence (R 32-34).

Executive Health Services was covered by a comprehensive insurance policy issued by State Farm, effective from June 19, 1981 to June 19, 1982 (R 5-31). The policy provided a number of coverages, including coverages for property damage, bodily injury, premises medical payments, and personal injury. The SMP Liability Insurance Form provided coverage for bodily injury liability:

The Company will pay on behalf of the insured all sums which the insured shall become legally obligated to pay as damages because of bodily injury or property damage to which this insurance applies, caused by an occurrence and arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of the insured premises and all operations necessary or incidental to the business of the named insured conducted at or from the insured premises ... (App. 11).

The policy, however, contained a professional liability exclusion:

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY EXCLUSION ENDORSEMENT

Form A

This endorsement modifies such insurance as is afforded by the provisions of the policy relating to the following:

SMP LIABILITY INSURANCE

COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

Description of Operations:

PARAMEDIC & PRE-EMPLOYMENT EXAMS

It is agreed that with respect to any operations described above or designated in the policy as subject to this endorsement, the insurance

does not apply to bodily injury or property damage due to:

1. the rendering of or failure to render
 - (a) medical, surgical, dental, x-ray or nursing service or treatment, or the furnishing of food or beverages in connection therewith;
 - (b) any service or treatment conducive to health or of a professional nature;

* * *

(App. 16; emphasis added).

The introductory portion of the policy contains a waiver provision which states:

No permission affecting this insurance shall exist, or waiver of any provision be valid, unless granted herein or expressed in writing added hereto. No provision, stipulation or forfeiture shall be held to be waived by any requirement or proceeding on the part of this Company relating to appraisal or to any examination provided for herein. (R 6).

It is undisputed that Executive Health Services knew when it contracted with State Farm that it was contracting for certain property and liability insurance, but not for professional malpractice insurance (R 131, 210, 233-34). The respondents stipulated that the State Farm policy was never intended to cover malpractice (R 224). Quince Cannon¹, the State Farm agent who obtained the insurance policy for Executive Health Services at issue, testified as follows:

¹Mr. Cannon is also an officer and a director of Executive Health Services, Inc. (R 202).

Q Okay. In general, what in general did they tell you? What kind of policy did they want to write? You had physicians who worked there. You had the property. What did they want you to write for them?

A They wanted me to cover their exposures. Now, I submitted this to the company and they came back, of course - we don't - State Farm did not write malpractice.

Q Okay. For physicians?

A For physicians. So they knew, and Executive Health Services and Properties both knew we were not covering professional liability.

* * *

Mr. Young: Okay. Just a minute. I didn't get a chance to make an objection to that question. But I think he's already stated that the intention was to provide coverage for everything except malpractice.

A Right.

Q Yeah. The one thing you had no intention of covering was the malpractice that might occur with regard to the professional people, doctors and nurses; correct?

A Right. (R 210-11; emphasis added).

Mr. Cannon also testified that the president of the corporation, the executive vice-president, and the board of directors all knew that there was no malpractice insurance in the State Farm policy (R 234). The clinic's doctors were required to have their own malpractice insurance (R 134). Dr. Montgomery himself knew that Executive Health Services' insurance policy with State Farm did not cover medical malpractice and that he had to obtain his own malpractice insurance, which he did (R 91, 96-97, 102). At no time did Mr. Cannon ever intend or represent to Executive

Health Services or Dr. Montgomery that professional malpractice was covered by the State Farm policy (R 211, 234).

When Dr. Montgomery was on duty on January 25, 1982, he was not a director of the corporation and had no supervisory authority on matters outside his immediate sphere of medical treatment (R 81, 118, 140, 230). Dr. Montgomery was operating as an independent contractor providing medical services to the clinic at the time of the accident (R 87-88, 119). It was only after Mr. Ray's accident that Dr. Montgomery became an officer in Executive Health Services, Inc. (R 82).

State Farm filed a declaratory judgment action to determine if the Ray accident was covered by its policy, and if it therefore had a duty to defend and indemnify the respondents. State Farm contended that the policy did not provide coverage because Mr. Ray's accident fell within the professional liability exclusion (R 39-70). State Farm also contended that the policy did not apply to Dr. Montgomery, arguing he was not an insured under the policy. Both sides moved for summary judgment, agreeing that there were no issues of material fact to be resolved (R 75-76, 144-47, 152-83). State Farm argued that, as a matter of law Mr. Ray's accident fell with the professional liability exclusion, while the respondents argued Mr. Ray's accident, as a matter of law, fell within the general liability provision and not the professional liability exclusion. The trial court² granted

²Circuit Court, Tenth Judicial Circuit, Polk County, Florida.

summary judgment for State Farm, finding that the professional liability exclusion applied (R 187-88). The judgment was amended nunc pro tunc on August 22, 1986.

Executive Health Services and Dr. Montgomery appealed that judgment to the Second District Court of Appeal, arguing that Mr. Ray's accident did not fall within the provisions of the professional liability exclusion, and that State Farm was estopped from denying coverage.

The Second District affirmed on the policy exclusion issue, finding Mr. Ray's accident clearly fell within the professional liability exclusion (App. 4). However, the Second District reversed the summary judgment on an estoppel issue. It found the respondents' argument that before the accident a State Farm agent (Cannon) had stated to Executive Health Services that the policy provided full and complete liability to the insured, except coverage for medical malpractice, presented an issue of material fact. The court ruled that it could not conclude that the alleged statement about coverage could not have been a representation that there was more coverage than was actually provided by the policy. "The policy terms did not exclude from coverage only malpractice, as the agent is alleged to have said, but excluded, among other things, the 'rendering of ... any service ... conducive to health'" The court further stated that it could not conclude whether any such representation was made at a time after the policy was issued and before the accident (App. 4-5). The Second District denied State Farm's Motion for

Rehearing, Motion for Rehearing en banc, and Request for Certification to the Florida Supreme Court. The Second District's opinion is reported as Executive Health Services, Inc. v. State Farm Fire and Casualty Co., 498 So.2d 1268 (Fla. 2d DCA 1986) (App. 6-8).

State Farm filed a Notice To Invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of the Second District. By order dated May 11, 1987, this Court accepted this case for review. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Art. V, §3(b)(3), Fla. Const.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

I.

SECOND DISTRICT'S DECISION APPLYING THE DOCTRINE OF ESTOPPEL TO CREATE COVERAGE SPECIFICALLY EXCLUDED FROM POLICY IS ERRONEOUS AND MUST BE REVERSED.

The Second District's decision misapplied the law of estoppel, and misconstrued the use of the term "malpractice" in this case, and therefore must be reversed.

It is fundamental insurance law that the doctrine of estoppel cannot be used to create coverage clearly excluded in a written contract of insurance. It is undisputed that Executive Health Services, Inc., contracted with State Farm for a policy of insurance which contained the exclusion for liability for bodily injuries arising out of the rendering of professional services at issue here. The policy exclusion is clear and unambiguous. At no time, before or after the policy was issued, before or after Mr. Ray's accident, did the respondents believe that the State Farm policy provided liability coverage for professional malpractice. Therefore, coverage did not exist and State Farm is entitled to summary judgment as a matter of law.

Proper application of this estoppel rule obviates the need to apply any of the recently formulated exceptions to that rule, as well as the need to determine whether State Farm's agent incorrectly told Executive Health Services it had more coverage than the State Farm policy actually provided. However, even applying the estoppel exceptions, as a matter of law none are applicable. Mr. Cannon provided uncontradicted testimony that

Executive Health Services knew it was not covered for professional liability, exactly what the policy delivered to Executive Health Services provides. Executive Health Services knew that and required its doctors to acquire their own malpractice insurance, something that Dr. Montgomery did. There was obviously no reliance by Executive Health Services or Dr. Montgomery on any alleged misrepresentation by Mr. Cannon.

Additionally, the Second District stretches logic in an attempt to establish coverage and override the express provisions of the insurance contract by creating a distinction between the "professional liability" exclusion and the term "malpractice". The use of the term "malpractice" in the law and by all parties in this case reflects the term is used synonymously with the term "professional liability". There is no material issue of fact as to the intent of the parties in the use of these terms, as to the representations of the parties, and as to reliance on the representations to the respondents' detriment. Therefore, State Farm was entitled to a summary judgment and this Court must reinstate that judgment.

Additionally, this Court's decision could have a wide ranging effect on the insurance industry in this state. To allow Florida courts to apply the doctrine of estoppel so as to allow an insured coverage which is expressly excluded from his insurance policy, and for which he paid absolutely no premium, will wreak havoc in the insurance industry. Proper application of the doctrine of estoppel so as to preclude coverage expressly excluded

in a policy of insurance will restore order and logic to the law.

II.

SECOND DISTRICT CORRECTLY RULED THAT PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY EXCLUSION PRECLUDED COVERAGE.

The undisputed evidence shows that Executive Health Services, Inc., a facility in the business of rendering medical services, had an insurance policy with State Farm which provided liability for bodily injuries except for those bodily injuries which occurred during the rendering of professional services, i.e., malpractice insurance. The undisputed evidence further reveals that Dr. Montgomery, while serving as an independent contractor for Executive Health Services, was on duty as a physician on January 25, 1982. In that capacity, he began professional treatment in an examination of a patient, Robert Ray. In the course of treatment, on order of Dr. Montgomery, Mr. Ray performed an act to resulting in the collapse of the examining table. Dr. Montgomery was thus clearly rendering medical service or treatment, or service or treatment conducive to health or of a professional nature. The great weight of legal authority in both Florida and other states demonstrates that Mr. Ray's injury falls within the professional liability exclusion of the State Farm policy. Therefore, the Second District's decision that the State Farm policy would not provide coverage to Executive Health Services and Dr. Montgomery for Mr. Ray's accident is correct and must be affirmed.

ARGUMENT

I.

SECOND DISTRICT'S DECISION APPLYING THE DOCTRINE OF ESTOPPEL TO CREATE COVERAGE SPECIFICALLY EXCLUDED FROM POLICY IS ERRONEOUS AND MUST BE REVERSED.

The decision of the Second District applying the doctrine of estoppel in this case is erroneous on legal, factual, and policy grounds, and therefore must be reversed.

The Second District ruled that the respondents' argument that before the accident Quince Cannon had stated to Executive Health Services that the State Farm policy provided full and complete liability coverage to Executive Health Services, except coverage for medical malpractice, warranted reversal of the summary judgment. The court stated that while representations by an agent as to coverage under an insurance policy made before the policy is issued did not estop the insurer from denying coverage, such representations made after the issuance of the policy and before the incident giving rise to the claim can estop the insurer from denying coverage. 498 So.2d at 1269. The court stated that it could not conclude whether the alleged statement about coverage could not have been a representation that there was more coverage than was actually provided by the State Farm policy, and could not conclude whether any such representation was made at a time after the policy was issued and before Mr. Ray's accident. Id. at 1270.

A. Second District Misapplied Law of Estoppel

The Second District's decision is erroneous because it applies the doctrine of estoppel to a matter of coverage, something this Court ruled was impermissible in Six L's Packing Co., Inc. v. Florida Farm Bureau Mutual Insurance Co., 276 So.2d 37 (Fla. 1973). The Second District did not discuss Six L's. In Six L's, this Court specifically adopted the decision of the Fourth District in Six L's Packing Co., Inc. v. Florida Farm Bureau Mutual Insurance Co., 268 So.2d 560 (Fla. 4th DCA 1972), where the Fourth District stated:

The general rule is well established that the doctrine of waiver and estoppel based upon the conduct or action of the insurer (or his agent) is **not** applicable to matters of **coverage** as distinguished from the grounds for **forfeiture** ... In other words, while an insurer may be estopped by its conduct from seeking a **forfeiture** of a policy, the insurer's **coverage** or restrictions on the **coverage** cannot be extended by the doctrine of waiver and estoppel.

268 So.2d at 563 (emphasis in original). Six L's involved a value reporting form policy for fire insurance. The value of the property at issue was reported only after the loss. The insured consistently filed late reports and claimed that the insured waived the contractual requirement that the insured filed monthly value reports. The insurance policy at issue in Six L's contained a waiver provision identical to the waiver provision present in the State Farm policy. Id. at 562; see p. 3 supra. The Fourth District affirmed a summary judgment

for the insurer on the ground that the filing of the monthly value reports went to coverage for which the doctrines of waiver and estoppel were not applicable. The Fourth District stated:

... under Florida Law and the overwhelming weight of the majority the doctrine of waiver and estoppel is not available to bring within the coverage of the policy risks not covered by its terms. There are therefore no issues of fact to be determined which would affect the applicability of the doctrine of waiver and estoppel. The doctrine is simply not applicable.

Id. at 564 (footnote omitted). It is beyond dispute that the professional liability exclusion in the State Farm policy goes to coverage, not forfeiture. In accord with the Six L's ruling, there are therefore no issues of fact to be determined which would or could affect the applicability of the doctrine of the estoppel, and therefore the Second District's ruling to the contrary is erroneous and cannot stand.

This Court has never receded from the Six L's rule. Other District Courts of Appeal have applied the Six L's rule and held that the doctrines of waiver and estoppel cannot be used to create or to extend coverage which is not provided in the written contract of insurance. Starlite Services, Inc. v. Prudential Insurance Co., 418 So.2d 305, 306-07 (Fla. 5th DCA), rev. dismissed, 421 So.2d 518 (Fla. 1982); Manacare Corp. v. First State Insurance Co., 374 So.2d 1100, 1102 (Fla. 2d DCA 1979); Radoff v. North American Co., 358 So.2d 1138, 1139 (Fla. 3d DCA 1978); Unijax, Inc. v. Factory Insurance Association, 328 So.2d 448, 455 (Fla. 1st DCA), cert. denied, 341 So.2d 1086

(Fla. 1976); Hayston v. Allstate Insurance Co., 290 So.2d 67, 69 (Fla. 3d DCA 1974); Hydraulic Equipment Systems and Fabrications, Inc. v. Pennsylvania Millers Mutual Insurance Co., 277 So.2d 53, 56-57 (Fla. 3d DCA 1973); Johnson v. Dawson, 257 So.2d 282, 284 (Fla. 3d DCA), cert. denied, 266 So.2d 673 (Fla. 1972); State Liquor Stores #1 v. United States Fire Insurance Co., 243 So.2d 228, 233-35 (Fla. 1st DCA 1971). See also Kaminer v. Franklin Life Insurance Co., 472 F.2d 1073, 1077 (5th Cir.), cert. denied, 414 U.S. 80 (1973); 16B Appleman, Insurance Law and Practice §9090 (1981); 18 Couch on Insurance 2d §71:40 (rev. ed. 1983).

In Starlight Services, supra, the Fifth District applied this body of case law in affirming summary judgment for the defendant insurer. Starlight Services sought enforcement of a group insurance contract having an "active work requirement" as a condition of coverage. On defendant's motion for summary judgment, the insured argued that an agent's statement that the claim would be accepted created an issue of fact as to whether the insurer waived the contractual prerequisites to an employee becoming insured. In affirming, the court invoked the "well settled" Florida rule that the doctrines of waiver and estoppel are not applicable to matters of coverage. The court stated that "[s]ince the active work requirement was one of coverage, the alleged waiver of that provision by Prudential's agent is of no moment. Consequently there was no dispute of a **material** fact and the trial court's summary judgment is AFFIRMED." 418 So.2d at 307 (emphasis in original). Similarly, the alleged

oral representations by State Farm's agent are of no moment. The statements are not material facts in this dispute because the language of the policy exclusion is clear and unambiguous, and is binding on both the insurer and the insured.

In Unifax, supra, 328 So.2d at 454-55, the First District affirmed a summary judgment in favor of the insurer and stated as follows:

Appellant's third argument, that appellee is estopped from asserting that Unifax did not sustain an insured loss, is necessarily founded upon the proposition that matters of coverage (as distinct from contentions of forfeiture) are subject to the doctrines of waiver and estoppel. This is an erroneous view of the law, which has been rejected by Florida courts. Six L's Pack. Co., Inc. v. Florida Farm Bur. Mut. Ins. Co., Sup.Ct.Fla. 1973, 276 So.2d 37 affirming Fla.App.4th 1972, 268 So.2d 560; Hayston v. Allstate Ins. Co., Fla.App.3d 1974, 290 So.2d 67; Kaminer v. Franklin Life Ins. Co., 472 F.2d 1073 (5th Cir. 1973); Johnson v. Dawson, Fla.App.3rd 1972, 257 So.2d 282; and see cases collected in 1 A.L.R.3d 1139 and Supplement.

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