6		A. 24		-,,-,-	_
IN	THE	SUPREME	COURT	OF	FLOR					
						Sit) J. Vi	11		

STATE FARM FIRE AND CASUALTY COMPANY,

Petitioner,

JUN 25 1837
CLERK, SUP ALAE COURT

By

Deputy Clerk

vs.

EXECUTIVE HEALTH SERVICES, INC., and WAYNE O. MONTGOMERY, M.D.,

Respondents.

CASE NO.: 69,897

On Notice To Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction To Review A Decision Of The Second District Court Of Appeal

RESPONDENTS' ANSWER BRIEF ON THE MERITS

CLIFFORD J. SCHOTT, ESQUIRE SCHOTT AND DALE, P.A. P.O. Box 1808 Lakeland, Florida 33802 (813) 683-6551 Attorney for Respondents

TOPICAL

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

I. SECOND DISTRICT ERRED IN RULING
THAT THERE WAS NO MATERIAL ISSUE
OF FACT FOR THE JURY TO CONSIDER
ON THE ISSUE OF WHETHER THE EXCLUSIONARY
PROVISION OF THE SUBJECT COMPREHENSIVE
LIABILITY POLICY APPLIED.

The general and observable facts which gave rise to the Plaintiff's injuries in this case are not disputed. Stated quite simply and directly, Plaintiff fell back heavily on an examining table, the table up-ended and Plaintiff fell on his right shoulder (R-82-84). Plaintiff sued Executive Health Services, Inc., and Dr. Montgomery, Defendants, for damages.

Executive Health Services was covered by a comprehensive insurance policy. The insurance policy language which is most pertinent to this review is as follows:

"The company will pay on behalf of the insured all sums which the insured shall become legally obligated to pay as damages because of bodily injury or property damage to which this insurance applies, caused by an occurrence and arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of the insured premises and all operations necessary or incidental to the business of the named insured conducted at or from the insured premises

"Each of the following is an insured under this insurance to the extent set forth below:

if the named insured is designated in the Declarations as other than an individual, partnership or joint venture, the organization so designated and any executive officer, member of the board of trustees, directors or governors or stockholder thereof while acting within the scope of his duties as such;"

The insurance company seeks to avoid its responsibility fr coverage to the Defendants by asserting that the Plaintiff's bodily injury was not caused by an occurrence arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of the insured premises or any operations necessary and incidental to the business of the named insured (rendering medical services) conducted at or from the insured premises.

However, the facts of this case unequivocally show that the Plaintiff's claim arises out of the ownership, maintenance, and use of a table which was owned by the Defendant corporation and was necessary and incidental to the business of the corporation (rendering medical services) and was maintained and used by the insured corporation on the insured premises. Therefore, the conclusion that the insurance company <u>is</u> under a duty to provide coverage to the insureds is inescapable.

Nevertheless, the insurance company seeks to escape its legal obligation by taking the position that the coverage is excluded under the following provision of the policy:

PARAMEDIC & PRE-EMPLOYMENT EXAMS

It is agreed that with respect to any operations described above or designated in the policy as subject to this endorsement, the insurance does not apply to bodily injury or property damage due to:

- 1. the rendering of or failure to render
 - (a) medical, surgical, dental, x-ray or nursing service or treatment,

or the furnishing of food or beverages in connection therewith;

(b) any <u>service or treatment</u> conducive to health or of a professional nature; (Emphasis added)

The facts of this case clearly show that the Plaintiff's injuries were not due to the rendering of medical service or treatment. The Plaintiff's injury was caused by the up-ending of a general examining table. The injury was not due to anything Dr. Montgomery did or failed to do in the rendering of his medical service or treatment and the jury in the trial Court so found as a matter of fact that this was the case. Furthermore, there is absolutely no evidence that the doctor was conducting a paramedic or pre-employment exam. Thus, the aforementioned policy exclusion is inapplicable.

The result should be the same if the floor upon which the table was located had given way causing injury to the Plaintiff, or; the door to the emergency room fell on the patient, or; the ceiling to the examining room collapsed, or; the Plaintiff was seated on a chair in the emergency room and the chair collpased causing his injury, or; the chair was in the waiting room when it collapsed. It would be inconsistent to conclude the coverage should be allowed under the examples given above and denied in the instant case. Yet, the logic of the circumstances is the same.

The controlling question is not whether the patient was receiving or about to receive treatment at the time of injury, but rather, as stated in the policy, whether the injury was due to the rendering or failure to render

a medical <u>service or treatment</u>. Each case should turn on its own facts. A factual determination to be made by a jury.

II. SECOND DISTRICT CORRECTLY RULED
THAT THERE WAS A MATERIAL ISSUE
OF FACT FOR THE JURY TO CONSIDER
ON THE ISSUE OF WHETHER THE INSURER IS
BARRED AND ESTOPPED FROM DENYING COVERAGE.

It is clear from the terms of the policy in question that coverage should be provided to the Defendants in this case. However, assume arguendo, that the Court finds that the policy is unclear or ambiguous as to whether or not coverage is provided under the facts of this case. Any ambiguity which may exist in the terms and conditions of said policy of insurance should be construed against the insurance company as the party who wrote the subject liability insurance policy. Therefore, the issue as to coverage should be resolved in favor of the insured.

Furthermore, the representatives of the insurer verified to the insured, prior to purchase, subsequent to purchase, before the accident and after the subject accident, that the insured had full and complete coverage under the terms of the policy in regard to the facts of this case. Therefore, the insurer should be barred or estopped from denying coverage.

The insurance company in this case knew at all times it was insuring a business in which the sole activity was rendering medical treatment and services. To allow the insurer to escape liability by a malpractice and professional services exclusion without a finding that the injury was

due to the rendering of medical treatment or service as opposed to being "connected with" the rendering of medical treatment or service would in effect exclude any and all coverage for the insured. The policy would be worthless because all business conducted by the insured is "connected with" the rendering of medical treatment or service.

ARGUMENT

I. SECOND DISTRICT ERRED IN RULING THAT THERE WAS NO MATERIAL ISSUE OF FACT FOR THE JURY TO CONSIDER ON THE ISSUE OF WHETHER THE EXCLUSIONARY PROVISION OF THE SUBJECT COMPREHENSIVE LIABILITY POLICY APPLIED.

The decision of whether or not there is a genuine material issue of fact for a jury's consideration has often been subject to interpretation from one Court to another. our District Courts of Appeal have often rendered conflicting decisions on similar facts as to whether or not a Summary Judgment had properly been granted where there was a claim by one of the parties that a genuine material issue of fact was in dispute, and thus it was a question for the jury's consideration. Our Florida Supreme Court in Holl v. Talcot, 191 So.2d 40 (1966) took jurisdiction where it was apparent that there was a conflict among various District Courts as to when Summary Judgment might be granted. That case involved a MALPRACTICE ACTION against surgeons, anesthesiologists, and a hospital brought by a patient of the doctors who was hospitalized. The Supreme Court in the Holl case (supra) gaveguidelines with reference to principles of law which are still applicable and should be applied herein. The Supreme Court stated at page 43:

". . . As this Court and other Appellate
Courts have repeatedly held, the burden of
proving the absence of a genuine issue of
material fact is upon the moving party. Until
it is determined that the movant has successfullly
met this burden, the opposing party is under
no obligation to show that issues do remain
to be tried . . . It must first be determined
that the movant has successfully met his

burden of proving a negative, i.e., the non-existence of a genuine issue of material fact. Matarese v. Lessburg Elks Club (supra). He must prove this negative conclusively. The proof must be such as to overcome all reasonable inferences which may be drawn in favor of the opposing party. Harvey Building, Inc. v. Haley (supra).

The proper Rule on this subject was well applied in the Matarese case. There the District Court of Appeal, Second District, reversed a Summary Final Judgment entered against the Plaintiff, not because it found the movant-Defendant's Affidavits were successfully met by the opposing party Plaintiff, but because the movant's Affidavits and other evidence did not establish the absence of genuine triable issue of material fact."

These principles of law with regard to Summary Judgment were recently repeated and the Supreme Court language in the Holl case (supra) was again used as authority in the recent case of Carrousel Concessions, Inc., Dania Jai-Alai Palace, Inc., and Saturday Corporation v. Florida Insurance Guaranty Association and Public Services Mutual Insurance Company, 483 So.2d 513 (Fla. App. 3 Dist. 1986).

It is admitted and there is not dispute that the named insured in the contract of insurance is Executive Health Services, Inc. There is no question that the incident which is the subject of Mr. Ray's lawsuit alleging negligence against these Defendants arose out of the use of an examining table which was on the insured's premises and that said table was incidental to the business of the named insured (Executive Health Services, Inc.), which was conducted at or from the insured's premises.

The obvious intent of the comprehensive liability insurance coverage was to offer insurance coverage to its insureds

under these conditions. That is what the Plaintiff company said under "Coverage C - Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability" wherein it stated:

"The company will pay on behalf of the insured all sums which the insured shall become legally obligated to pay as damage because of bodily injury or property damage to which this insurance applies, caused by an occurrence and arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of the insured premises and all operations necessary or incidental to the business of the named insured conducted at or from the insured premises . . ." (R-13).

However, State Farm Fire and Casualty Company then turns around and goes to its exclusion and argues that under the terms of the exclusion, this insurance does not apply to bodily injury due to: the rendering of or failure to render medical service . . . State Farm Fire and Casualty Company then goes on to argue in its Motion for Summary Judgment that Dr. Montgomery had commenced the rendering of medical services and the bodily injury to Mr. Ray arose because of the fact that he was rendering medical services. (Emphasis supplied.)

Overlooking for the moment that the jury in the actual case of Ray v. Dr. Montgomery found that the alleged bodily injury suffered by Mr. Ray was not caused by any action on the part of Dr. Montgomery, we should turn then to the testimony of Dr. Montgomery to see if, despite the contention of the insurance company, whether there was indeed a genuine issue of material fact.

Dr. Montgomery testified under oath in his deposition that back on January 25, 1982, the day of Mr. Ray's incident,

that he was on duty as the treating doctor at the clinic owned by Executive Health Services, Inc. That Mr. Ray came in because of an injury under his workmen's compensation coverage where he had gotten a splinter in his thigh while at work. That when the doctor first came into the room, Mr. Ray was already seated on the examining table. The doctor merely asked him what the problem was and the doctor read some notes that had been written down by the nurse prior to the doctor coming into the room.

The patient then explained what had happened was that he had brushed against some timber and ran a splinter into his thigh. The doctor then asked the patient (Mr. Ray) to lie down so that he can get a better look at it, which Mr. Ray proceeded to do and he fell back rather heavily on the table, causing it to up-end and Mr. Ray fell off on his right shoulder. (Emphasis supplied.)

Thereafter, when the table was righted, Mr. Ray again sat on the examining table and then for the first time, the doctor <u>looked at the splinter</u> and told Mr. Ray that the doctor did not think he could remove it as it was rather deeply embedded and therefore, Dr. Montgomery referred him to a surgeon, Dr. Barrios, for treatment (R-82-84). (Emphasis supplied).

Clearly, there would be a genuine issue of material fact for the jury to consider under the exclusionary provision of the subject liability insurance policy. Did the bodily injury to Mr. Ray occur by the rendering or failure to render of any medical services by Dr. Montgomery? Did Dr. Montgomery

start to render any medical service to Mr. Ray?

The uncontroverted evidence is that Dr. Montgomery had only asked a question of the patient, looked at the nurse's notes, and then asked the patient to lie down in order to have a look at the splinter in the thigh when the examining table collapsed. What medical service had he rendered to that point? What medical service had he failed to render to that point? Was not the actual injury to the Plaintiff caused by an occurrence arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of the insured premises and all operations necessary or incidental to the business of the named insured conducted at or from the insured premises? Was the bodily injury in question incurred under the language of the exclusion which indicates the description of the operations to which this exclusion applies as a paramedic and pre-employment exam? Does the exclusion apply to a workmen's compensation injury where that language is not part of the exclusion? If the bodily injury to Mr. Ray occurred as a result of a defectively designed or manufactured table or the examining table having a latent defect collapsed throwing the Plaintiff, Mr. Ray, to the floor, are these material questions of fact for the jury to consider?

It is the Defendant's position that under the facts of the case, the doctor had merely walked into the Emergency Room, looked at the nurse's notes, asked the patient what had occurred, and then requested the patient to lie down in order that the doctor could examine the wound. He had not yet begun to render medical services.

A jury could reasonably have concluded that the rendering of medical services began when Dr. Montgomery examined the wound and made a determination that the splinter was too deep and then referred him to a surgeon. That would have the commencement of the rendering of medical services after the table had collapsed and after the Plaintiff, Ronald Ray, was allegedly injured as a result of the fall from the collapsing table.

In looking at various cases around the country that have focused on the rendering of professional or medical services as it relates to insurance coverage, we find there were decisions going in many directions. Sometimes on the same set of facts, two different Courts in two different States have found two different answers.

A case illustrating the divergence of opinion among various Courts on similar fact situations is the case of Ratliff v. the Employers Liability Assurance Corporation,

Ltd., Ky., 515 S.W.2d 225 (Court of Appeals of Kentucky,
1974). A review of that decision gives us an insight into some of the problems that have been considered in insurance liability policies having an exclusion similar to the one under review herein. The Court of Appeals at page 228 stated:

"Both parties have submitted excellent Briefs containing a comprehensive citation of cases. The apparently simple task of determining whether Ratliff's injuries fall within the malpractice and professional services exclusion immediatley becomes complex when one considers the cases which have reached exactly opposite results upon similar factual situations . . In <u>D'Antoni v. Sara Mayo Hospital</u>, La., 144 So2d 642, . . . After administering oxygen to the patient, a nurse failed to raise a bed rail on one side of the bed. The Plaintiff was injured when she fell from the bed. The

Louisiana Court held that the malpractice and professional services exclusion did not apply . . . "

Then at page 229 of the Ratliff decision:

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